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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Mary's Roman Catholic Church was built in 1839 and is a two-story, stucco
over brick structure.

Exterior: Four Doric columns support a massive entablature which is capped with a
stepped parapet. The parapet wall was probably added during the renovation program
of 1895. A Tlarge central portal is flanked by a smaller door on each side.

A semicircular arched window is located directly above the central door, with
smaller circular windows above the side doors. Both circular and semicircular
windows are embellished with keystones.

The north and south facades are divided into five equal bays which are
accentuated with arched openings at the gallery level. The openings currently
display stained glass windows, but originally were filled with transparent glass.

The structure is rectangular, the overall dimensions being 50' by 84'.
Since 1900 a sacristy has been added to the rear of the building, serving as a
storage and dressing area.

Interior: Three doors connect the narthex to the sanctuary. A central aisle
separates two large rows of pews, with smaller aisles running along the sides,
above which is a gallery supported by Ionic columns.

Beginning in 1895 and continuing through 1896, changes and additions were
made to St. Mary's. A heating system was installed, a new organ was purchased,
and twenty-three paintings were added to the ceiling (where there is also stenciling).
An altar, platform, and sanctuary-- all of polished marble -- were also added. A
series of arched Mosaic windows (which church records say were madein Munich)
were presented as a gift by several parishoners.

Surroundings: The church graveyard surrounds the church on each side and to the rear.
Many prominent Charlestonians have been buried here.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Mary's Church isconsidered the first established Roman Catholic Church in the
Carolinas and Georgia. In 1789 trustees for the church purchased the property which
it still occupies on Hasell Street in Charleston. In 1791 it was incorporated by the
General Assemby of South Carolina as the Roman Catholic Church of Charleston.
According to church records, the structure being used for services was soon replaced
by a brick structure. This building was destroyed in 1838 in the Charleston fire
of that year. Construction of the third and present structure began almost immediately,
and the church was opened for worship June 9, 1839.

Architecture: St. Mary's is based on the Roman mode of architecture. Although of simple
design, its massive Doric columns and entablature lend it a monumental quality.

Included in South Carolina architectural historian Samuel Stoney's This is
Charleston, St. Mary's is listed as being "Valuable to Charleston."

Art: Above the altar of St. Mary's is a painting of the Crucifixion by John S. Cogdell.
Cogdell had originally painted a crucifixion for St. Mary's in 1814, but this painting
was destroyed in the fire of 1838. Cogdell presented the present painting as a gift

to the church.

There are twenty-three paintings (copies of originals) by Caesare Porta of Rome.
These paintings were acquired by St. Mary's in 1896. In 1960 when the interior was
refurbished, many of these paintings were restored.

Religion: The Catholic Church grew slowly in South Carolina, St. Mary's being the first
established congregation. Between 1791 and 1820 the church experienced problems.

As a result, it was decided to separate Georgia and the Carolinas from the diocese of
Baltimore, establishing the diocese of Charleston with John England as Bishop. On
December 31, 1820, he was given control of St. Mary's. The church continued to be plagued
by controversies, and in 1822 Bishop England decided it was impossible for it to continue
as the Cathedral Church.

(continued)
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Eventually the problems were resolved, and the church history reco;ds that by
1824 "A gradual renewal of 1ife and energy now came to the old church."! Its
vitality and continued growth were evidenced in 1896 by generous gifts of
parishoners including the stained glass windows and marble altar. Since that time,
St. Mary's has continued to promote Roman Catholicism in Charleston.

]Thomas F. Hopkins, St. Mary's Church of Charleston (Charleston, S. C.:
Walker, Evans and Cogswell, 1891), p. 51
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